

Witney Town Council Investment Strategy

The Town Council acknowledges the importance of prudently investing surplus funds held on behalf of the community. All investments will be made in line with the Council's financial procedures and observations or advice received from the Council's internal and external auditors, supported as necessary by advice from the Council's financial advisors.

Statutory basis: The Local Government Act 2003 (section 12) states that a local authority may invest:

- (a) for any purpose relevant to its functions under any enactment, or
- (b) for the purposes of the prudent management of its financial affairs.

This Strategy complies with the Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments (3rd edition, March 2018) and Section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003. This Strategy also complies with the guidance set out in the Joint Panel on Accountability and Governance Practitioners' Guide (2024 edition~~March 2023~~).

Financial Policies

The Council will ensure it has adequate though not excessive cash resources, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all times to have the level of funds available which are necessary for the achievement of its service objectives.

When considering financial plans and preparing the annual budget, the Council will aim to:

- a) Maintain a working bank account balance of approximately one to three months net anticipated expenditure.
- b) Surplus funds will be placed in suitable bank accounts or funds that are accessible immediately or with a specified period of notice in order to generate a suitable level of interest on return.
- c) Maintain a General Revenue Reserve (GRR), not earmarked for specific purposes, to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies or to smooth out cashflow when undertaking works prior to the receipt of approved grants or Developer Contributions. The GRR will be and maintained at between approximately three ~~and six~~ months of net~~gross~~ revenue expenditure.
- d) Maintain Earmarked Reserves (EMRs), for both capital and revenue expenditure, to meet known or predicted future liabilities, identified individually in the Council's budgets.

Formatted: Underline

Commented [NW1]: Changed to reflect best practice

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Investment Objectives

1. The Council's investment priorities are the security of reserves and adequate liquidity of its investments.
2. The Council will aim to maximise income from its investments commensurate with appropriate levels of security and liquidity.
3. The Council will seek to ensure that investment income is consistent one year to the next.
4. Where external investment managers are used, they will be contractually required to comply with this Strategy.

~~The Council is the custodian of public money on behalf of the Council tax payers of Witney and consequently in balancing risk against return, the Council is must prioritise its more concerned priority to avoid risks over that its aim than to maximise returns, in acknowledgment that the Council is the custodian of public money on behalf of the Council tax payers of Witney.~~

~~5.~~

~~5-6.~~ All investments will be in sterling.

~~7.~~ The power to invest must be exercised in accordance with the provisions of this Strategy and what is best for the financial position of the Council in terms of investment returns. However subject to these requirements, the precise choice of investment may then be influenced by wider social, ethical or environmental considerations.

~~6.~~ The Council has declared a Climate Change Emergency and therefore places a high priority on sustainability in order to meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their needs. The Council will consider these matters when making investment decisions but also recognises that there are limitations on the extent to which it can make environmental, social and governance comparisons and assessments including:

- (a) Multiple and diverse sustainability frameworks and standards including on sustainability disclosure.
- (b) The lack of common definition of sustainable activities.
- (c) Greenwashing (a difficulty establishing the depth of claimed green credentials).

Commented [NW2]: Investment managers not currently used

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.12 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.63 cm, First line: 0.12 cm

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.63 cm

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

Specified Investments

Specified investments are those offering high security and high liquidity, made in sterling and maturation of no more than a year. Such short-term investments made with the UK Government or a local authority or town or parish council will automatically be Specified Investments.

For prudent management of its treasury balances, maintaining sufficient levels of security and liquidity, Witney Town Council will use:

- Deposits with banks, building societies, local authorities or other public authorities.
- Other recognised funds specifically targeted at the Public Sector.
- The choice of institution and length of deposit will be at the discretion of the Responsible Financial Officer in consultation with the Town Clerk/ Chief Executive. This information will then be reported to the Policy, Governance and Finance Committee.

Non-Specified Investments

These investments have greater potential risk such as investments in the money market, stocks and shares. Should the Council decide to make non-specified investments it will use the services of an appointed FCA (Financial Conduct Authority) accredited financial advisor on the investment of these funds. The choice of investment company will be reviewed within the first year of every new administration following an election or more frequently if the performance of the investments is not meeting the required objectives

Long term investments, defined as greater than 36 months, will be used to support the forward Capital Programme which will be reviewed and agreed annually. Capital growth of the fund should be maximised but at least equal to RPI (Retail Prices Index) whilst being consistent with the required level of security and all other public investment criteria.

The Council will expect the Investment Manager to invest in a balanced portfolio that will yield a consistent income/growth year on year whilst having regard to the Council's objectives and security of its investments. The Investment Manager should consider social, ethical and/or environmental factors or criteria when selecting, retaining or disposing of assets.

End of Year Investment Report

Reporting on investments

The Responsible Financial Officer will present a report detailing current investments and their latest performance to each ordinary meeting of the Policy, Governance and Finance Committee.

Following the ~~At the~~ end of each financial year the Responsible Financial Officer and FCA accredited financial adviser and Manager (if appointed) will present a report on the Investment activity to Full Council/the Policy, Governance and Finance Committee report on performance in relation to that financial year.-

Commented [NW3]: The Council does not currently have non-specified investments

Commented [NW4]: Changed to reflect current practice, which is considered appropriate for the Council

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Normal, Justified

Review and Amendment of Regulations

This Strategy will be reviewed annually by the Policy, Governance & Finance Committee. The Committee reserves the right to make variations to the Strategy at any time, subject to the approval of the Full Council.

~~Reviewed date of this review~~: Policy, Governance and Finance Committee, 3 February 2025.

Date of next review: Policy, Governance and Finance Committee, July 2025.

Proposed amendments to policy are tracked.